
LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

MAY 19, 2022, 6:00 PM 

Santiam Travel Station 750 S. Third Street, Lebanon, OR 97355 

DISTRICT GOALS:  Improve Student Achievement, K-3 Literacy, On-Time Graduation 

MEETING AGENDA 

Meeting Agenda May 19, 2022   1 

1. WELCOME

A. Call to Order
B. Flag Salute

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This is a time for citizens to address the Board.  The Chair will recognize speaker(s) at the
designated time.  All speakers shall identify themselves and state their name before speaking.
Speakers are asked to provide their name, address and telephone number on the Speaker’s Sign-in
Sheet.  Each speaker may address the Board for three minutes.

   Action:   Approval Requested 

  Action:  Approval Requested 

  Action:  Informational 

   Action: Informational 

 Action:   Approval Requested 

  Action:   Approval Requested 

 Action:  Approval Requested  

3. AUDIT RESULTS APPROVAL, pg. 4

4. RESOLUTION NO. 2122-7 FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS, pg.114

5. BOND UPDATE

6. SUMMER SCHOOL UPDATE

7. SUPERINTENDENT’S CONTRACT

8. ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT’S CONTRACT

9. CONSENT AGENDA

A. April 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes, pg. 116
B. Hiring: 

NAME POSITION FTE START 
DATE 

END 
DATE 

TEMPORARY 
Kyler Murphy Behavior Support Specialist – Hamilton 

Creek School 
1.0 4/11/2022 6/15/2022 

NEW HIRES 2022-23 
Jennifer Baugh Elementary Teacher – Cascades School 1.0 8/29/2022 
Stephen Canfield Elementary Teacher – Green Acres 1.0 8/29/2022 
Valerie Duncan Elementary Art Teacher 1.0 8/29/2022 
Sarah Fountain Elementary Teacher – Riverview School 1.0 8/29/2022 

Page 1



Meeting Agenda May 19, 2022 2 

Julie Henry Special Education Teacher/TOSA – District 
Office 

1.0 8/29/2022 

Jessica Laidlaw Elementary Teacher – Pioneer 1.0 8/29/2022 
Kirsten Marin Elementary Roving Teacher – Riverview 1.0 8/29/2022 
Jesse Pratt PE/Health Teacher – Seven Oak 1.0 8/29/2022 

ADMINISTRATOR 
Emily Canfield Principal – Hamilton Creek School 1.0 4/4/2022 

C. Policy Updates – First Reading, pg. 121

  CODE   TITLE 

JHCD/JHCDA Medications 

JHCD/JHCDA-AR Medications 

  Action:  Informational 

  Action:  Informational 

10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
A. Operations
B. Human Resources
C. Finance, pg. 136

11. COMMUNICATION

A. Board
B. Superintendent, pg. 144 

12. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

The Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors welcomes you to our regular meeting. It
is the Board's goal to hold an effective and efficient meeting to conduct the business of the District. 
In keeping with this goal, the Board provides a place for Audience Comments on each of its regular 
agendas. This is a time when you can provide statements or ask questions. The Board allows three 
minutes for each speaker. The language below discusses the Public Meetings Law and public 
participation in such meetings. 

"The Public Meetings Law is a public attendance law, not a public participation law. Under the 
Public Meetings Law, governing body meetings are open to the public except as otherwise 
provided by law. ORS 192.630 The right of public attendance guaranteed by the Public Meetings 
Law does not include the right to participate by public testimony or comment. 

"Other statutes, rules, charters, ordinances, and bylaws outside the Public Meetings Law may 
require governing bodies to hear public testimony or comment on certain matters. But in the 
absence of such a requirement, a governing body may conduct a meeting without any public 
participation. Governing bodies voluntarily may allow limited public participation at their 
meetings.” 

Oregon Attorney General's Administrative Law Manual and Uniform and Model Rules of 
Procedure under the Administrative Procedures Act. Hardy Myers, Attorney General, 
March 27, 2000. 

Page 2



Meeting Agenda May 19, 2022 3 

13. ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming meeting dates: 

May 26, 2022 – Budget Committee Meeting at 6:00 PM 
June 9, 2022 – Budget Hearing and Regular Meeting at 6:00 PM 
July 14, 2022 – Reorganizational Meeting at 6:00 PM 

Page 3



Agenda Item 3 
Audit Results 

Page 4



Page 5



 
Page 6



 
Page 7



 
Page 8



 
Page 9



Page 10



 
Page 11



 
Page 12



 
Page 13



 
Page 14



 
Page 15



 
Page 16



 
Page 17



 
Page 18



 
Page 19



 
Page 20



 
Page 21



 
Page 22



 
Page 23



 
Page 24



 
Page 25



 
Page 26



 
Page 27



 
Page 28



 
Page 29



 
Page 30



 
Page 31



 
Page 32



 
Page 33



 
Page 34



 
Page 35



 
Page 36



 
Page 37



 
Page 38



 
Page 39



 
Page 40



 
Page 41



 
Page 42



 
Page 43



 
Page 44



 
Page 45



 
Page 46



 
Page 47



 
Page 48



 
Page 49



 
Page 50



 
Page 51



 
Page 52



 
Page 53



 
Page 54



 
Page 55



 
Page 56



 
Page 57



 
Page 58



 
Page 59



 
Page 60



 
Page 61



 
Page 62



 
Page 63



 
Page 64



 
Page 65



 
Page 66



 
Page 67



 
Page 68



 
Page 69



 
Page 70



 
Page 71



 
Page 72



 
Page 73



 
Page 74



 
Page 75



 
Page 76



 
Page 77



 
Page 78



 
Page 79



 
Page 80



 
Page 81



 
Page 82



 
Page 83



 
Page 84



 
Page 85



 
Page 86



 
Page 87



 
Page 88



 
Page 89



 
Page 90



 
Page 91



 
Page 92



 
Page 93



 
Page 94



 
Page 95



 
Page 96



 
Page 97



 
Page 98



 
Page 99



 
Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



 
Page 103



 
Page 104



 
Page 105



 
Page 106



 
Page 107



Page 108



 
Page 109



 
Page 110



 
Page 111



 
Page 112



Page 113



Agenda Item 4 
Resolution No. 2122-7 

Page 114



BOARD 
RESOLUTION 

To: The Honorable Chair and Members
Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors

From: William Lewis, Business Director

Date: 05/12/2022 Meeting Date:  05/19/2022

Re: Approval Interfund Loan

Background

During the 2021-22 school year the district desires to purchase curriculum early in preparation for
a 2022-23 curriculum implementation. This will allow staff to have access to the required curriculum
resources prior to summer vacation. To accomplish this early purchase of curriculum the district would
like to complete an interfund loan of up to $150,000.00 from fund 272 capital projects fund to fund 240
the textbook adoption fund.

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board approve an interfund loan from fund 272 capital projects fund
to fund 240 textbook adoption fund up to the amount of up to $150,000.00.

Resolution #2021-22-7 Approval of Interfund Loan

Whereas: ORS 293.210 to 293.225 provides authority for interfund borrowing, and;

Whereas: Lebanon Community School District will develop a formal borrowing agreement between
funds 272 and 240 stating the terms of the loan, and any other required documentation, and the loan
will be paid back during the 2022-23 school year; therefore:

Be It Resolved that Lebanon Community School District approves an interfund loan between fund 272
and 240.

Approved: Signed:  
Date Board Chair 

Page 115



Agenda Item 9 
April 14, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes 

Page 116



LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 14, 2022, 6:00 PM 

Santiam Travel Station    750 S. Third Street, Lebanon, OR 97355 

MEETING MINUTES 

Board Meeting Minutes April 14, 2022 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mike Martin, Chair 
Richard Borden, Vice Chair 
Tom Oliver, Member 
Tammy Schilling, Member 
Nichole Piland, Member 

EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT: 
Bo Yates, Superintendent  
Jennifer Meckley, Assistant Superintendent 
William Lewis, Business Director 
Kim Grousbeck, Human Resources Director 
Bill Wittman, School Improvement and Federal 

Programs Director 

The meeting minutes were recorded by Executive Secretary Ruth Hopkins. 

1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER

Board Chair Mike Martin called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and led the flag salute.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments for the Board.

3. COUNSELING PRESENTATION

Assistant Superintendent Jennifer Meckley presented a comprehensive school counseling program
to the Board.  She explained it was to move from a reactive to a proactive model.  School
counselors have four domains that they work in, which are academic development, career
development, social/emotional development and learning to contribute to society.  These are the
domains that guide the programs.

Each domain must have a foundation, management, delivery and accountability.  Then within the
framework there are student standards around mindset and behavior.  The program is delivered by
a team, not just the counselors in a school.

She reviewed the presentation and broke down the information by schools and what the needs are,
services and the outcomes.  For mental health counseling, students are referred to Linn County
Mental Health.  She shared the information for those referrals that is broken down by schools and
how many mental health therapists serve the schools, as well as how many students they serve
there.

Whereupon, there was a discussion around the program and the process.

Page 117



Board Meeting Minutes April 14, 2022 

The Board requested more specifics regarding the outcomes and would like to have regular reports 
on this subject.   

Superintendent Yates added that the district also uses DESSA to screen students that are K-12 and 
use that information to see where they can support students. 

4. SUMMER SCHOOL UPDATE

Bill Wittman, School Improvement Administrator, presented the summer school information to the
Board that is included in the agenda information and is available online.  He explained that Ryan
King will be the summer school coordination again this year.  The information he is sharing is
tentative, due to the fact that they are not sure what staff they will have available.  There is a staff
interest survey that will be closing soon, and once they have that information, they will know what
staff they will have available to build the summer school program and decide on plans.  At this
point, they are looking at having three sessions at the elementary and middle school levels.
Students can sign up for one, two or three sessions.  The high school will have one three-week
session that will focus on credit recovery.

There will be some enrichment as well.  The current plan is for three hours of academics, lunch and
then a 90-minute to two-hour period of enrichment activities.  They will be incorporating teens
from the high school to help support that as well.  This will be a fundraising opportunity for them,
since they have not been able to fundraise for clubs and athletics.

Whereupon, there was a discussion around summer school and how it would operate.

5. LHS LANGUAGE ARTS ADOPTION

Bill Wittman, School Improvement Administrator, shared the process for the high school language
arts adoption.  He explained that the language arts department at the high school were the ones
that were on the adoption committee and discussed how they came to present “Intro to Literature”
and “Writeable” from Houghton Mifflin Harcourt to be approved for adoption.

Whereupon, there was a discussion around the content of the curriculum.

Upon motion made by Vice Chair Richard Borden, duly seconded by Member Tammy Schilling, the
Board voted unanimously to approve the LHS Language Arts curriculum adoption as presented.

6. 2022-23 AMENDED CERTIFIED CALENDAR

Kim Grousbeck presented the amended certified calendar reflecting a change in the dates for
spring break and spring conferences.

Upon motion made by Member Tom Oliver, duly seconded by Member Tammy Schilling, the Board
voted unanimously to approve the 2022-23 amended certified calendar as presented.

7. CONSENT AGENDA

Upon motion made by Member Tom Oliver, duly seconded by Member Tammy Schilling, the Board
voted to approved the consent agenda as a whole, as presented.  Thereby approving the March 20,

Page 118



Board Meeting Minutes April 14, 2022 

2022 Board meeting minutes; adopting Policies ACB, ACB-AR, GBL, IGBAF-AR, IGBAG-AR, IGBB, 
IGBHA, IGBHA-AR, JFCF, CM, IJ, BDDH, BDDH-AR, IIA, JECB, IL, IKF, BBAA, IGDJ, JBB and IKFB on 
second reading; and the hiring of Blaine Conley, Katharine Dorman, Toni-Lynn Benoit, Stefennie 
Brooling, Danny Canty, John Carey, Matthew Clark, Brandi Dooley, Marianna Fosselman, Madelyn 
George, Tess Irwin, Stacey Jubb, Bridgit Mengoni, Zachary Short, Rebecca Stiles, Monica Turkisher, 
and Barbara Wilson. 
 

8. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
A.  Operations 

 
Superintendent Yates shared that the district is looking at transportation options for Hamilton 
Creek School and Lacomb School to see if there are other options, such as a van, for bus routes that 
cover the outlying areas.  Staff within the schools would be trained to transport kids.  The district is 
looking at all options to help with transporting students on the smaller routes. 
 
B. Human Resources 

 
Kim Grousbeck shared that they had a successful job fair.  They gave out four job offers and those 
have been accepted.  There have been a lot of job offers that have went out in the last two weeks 
for certified staff.  They will begin working to hire the classified staff. 
 
C. Finance 

 
William Lewis presented the financial information.  He discussed the curriculum adoption and the 
possibility of purchasing it now so that the supplies will be here in time for the teachers.  The 
option for that is to borrow from the capital projects fund to purchase the curriculum.  If everything 
is purchased, it would be $111,000.00.  He would like to come back in May for approval to transfer 
$120,000.00 from capitol projects to the textbook adoption fund.   
 
The Board indicated that they would be in favor of moving forward with that transfer. 
 
William Lewis then discussed the ESSER III funds and the Seven Oak project.  They will need more 
money for the completion of that project.  He said they will need an additional $2 million for the 
Seven Oak project.  The reason for the needed extra funds is that originally it was for six classrooms 
and a CTE classroom.  The plan now is just for an addition of six classrooms.  They are currently 
looking at construction options and are reviewing soft book numbers at this point, not at hard 
numbers with quotes.  He will come back next month with drawings reflecting the change in plans 
and hard numbers.   
 
Member Tom Oliver added that if the district is going to be modifying the scope of the work and 
dropping the CTE classroom, he would like to have that come back to the Board for a discussion.   

 
9. COMMUNICATION 

 
A.  Board 

 
Vice Chair Richard Borden brought up the OSBA Summer Conference and encourage his fellow 
Board members to attend. 

 
Page 119



Board Meeting Minutes April 14, 2022 

B. Superintendent

Superintendent Yates shared that Welcome Center staff member Julie Miller was chosen as the 
Optimist of the Year. 

10. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

Audience member Tana Nicholson requested the opportunity to address the Board.  She asked
about volunteers being allowed back into the schools to help the junior and seniors with
academics.  She also shared that she is a part of a group that is adopting the skate park.  She has
asked the City to put together a list of projects that need to be done there.  She would like to create
a Facebook page with all of the project information on it and use it as an avenue to help juniors
and seniors earn their required community service hours.  The City will provide the needed supplies,
such as garbage bags and paint, for the work.

11. MEETING ADJOURNED

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 7:12 PM.

___________________________________________ 
Mike Martin, Board Chair 

___________________________________________ 
Bo Yates, Superintendent 

Page 120



Agenda Item 9 
Policy Updates First Reading 

Page 121



R11/22/19 | PH           Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA 

1-3

Lebanon Community Schools 

Code: JHCD/JHCDA 
Adopted: 12/14/17 

Readopted: 4/23/20       

Medications**/* 

The district recognizes that administering a medication to a student and/or permitting a student to 

administer a medication himself/herself, may be necessary when the failure to take such medication during 

school hours would prevent the student from attending school, and recognizes a need to ensure the health 

and well-being of a student who requires regular doses or injections of a medication as a result of 

experiencing a life-threatening allergic reaction or adrenal crisis1, or a need to manage hypoglycemia, 

asthma or diabetes.  Accordingly, the district may administer or a student may be permitted to administer 

to himself/herself prescription (injectable and noninjectable) and/or nonprescription (noninjectable) 

medication at school.   

The district shall designate personnel authorized to administer medications to students.  Annual training 

shall be provided to designated personnel as required by law in accordance with guidelines approved by 

the Oregon Department of Education (ODE).  When a licensed health care professional is not immediately 

available, trained personnel designated by the district may administer epinephrine, glucagon or another 

medication to a student as prescribed and/or allowed by Oregon law. 

Current first-aid and CPR cards are strongly encouraged for designated personnel. 

The district reserves the right to reject a request for administration of medication at school, either by 

district personnel or student self-administration, if the medication is not necessary for the student to remain 

in school. 

The superintendent and/or designee will require that an individualized health care plan and allergy plan is 

developed for every student with a known life-threatening allergy or a need to manage asthma, and an 

individualized health care plan for every student for whom the district has been given proper notice of a 

diagnosis of adrenal insufficiency.  Such a plan will include provisions for administering medication 

and/or responding to emergency situations while the student is in school, at a school-sponsored activity, 

under the supervision of school personnel, in a before-school or after-school care program on school-

owned property and in transit to or from school or a school-sponsored activity. 

A student may be allowed to self-administer a medication for asthma, diabetes, hypoglycemia or severe 

allergies as prescribed by an Oregon licensed health care professional, upon written and signed request of 

the parent or guardian and subject to age-appropriate guidelines.  This self-administration provision also 

requires a written and signed confirmation the student has been instructed by the Oregon licensed health 

care professional on the proper use of and responsibilities for the prescribed medication. 

1Under proper notice given to the district by a student or student’s parent or guardian. 

Page 122



 

R11/22/19 | PH                  Medication**/* - JHCD/JHCDA 

2-3 

A request to the district to administer or allow a student to self-administer prescription medication shall 

include a signed prescription and treatment plan from a prescriber2. 

 

A request to the district to administer or allow a student to self-administer nonprescription that is not 

approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) shall include a written order from the student’s 

prescriber that meets the requirements of law. 

 

A written request and permission form signed by a student’s parent or guardian, unless the student is 

allowed to access medical care without parental consent under state law3, is required and will be kept on 

file. 

 

If the student is deemed to have violated Board policy or medical protocol by the district, the district may 

revoke the permission given to a student to self-administer medication. 

 

Prescription and nonprescription medication will be handled, stored, monitored, disposed of and records 

maintained in accordance with established district administrative regulations governing the administration 

of prescription or nonprescription medications to students, including procedures for the disposal of sharps 

and glass. 

 

A process shall be established by which, upon parent or guardian written request, a back-up prescribed 

autoinjectable epinephrine is kept at a reasonably, secure location in the student’s classroom as provided 

by state law. 

 

A premeasured dose of epinephrine may be administered by trained, designated personnel to any student 

or other individual on school premises who the person believes in good faith is experiencing a severe 

allergic reaction, regardless of whether the student or individual has a prescription for epinephrine. 

 

Naloxone or any similar medication that is in any form available for safe administration and that is 

designed to rapidly reverse an overdose of an opioid drug may be administered by trained, designated 

personnel to any student or other individual on school premises who the person believes in good faith is 

experiencing an overdose of an opioid drug.  

 

This policy shall not prohibit, in any way, the administration of recoOops gnized first aid to a student by 

district employees in accordance with established state law, Board policy and administrative regulation. 

 

A school administrator, teacher or other district employee designated by the school administrator is not 

liable in a criminal action or for civil damages as a result of the administration, in good faith and pursuant 

to state law, of prescription and/or nonprescription medication. 

 

A school administrator, school nurse, teacher or other district employee designated by the school 

administrator is not liable in a criminal action or for civil damages as a result of a student’s self-

                                                 
2A registered nurse who is employed by a public or private school, ESD or local public health authority to provide nursing 

services at a public or private school may accept an order from a physician licensed to practice medicine or osteopathy in 

another state or territory of the U.S. if the order is related to the care or treatment of a student who has been enrolled at the 

school for not more than 90 days. 
3Subject to ORS 109.610, 109.640 and 109.675. 

 
Page 123



 

R11/22/19 | PH                 Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA 

3-3 

administration of medication, as described in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 339.866, if that person in 

good faith and pursuant to state law, assisted the student in self-administration of the medication. 

 

A school administrator, school nurse, teacher or other district employee designated by the school 

administration is not liable in a criminal action or for civil damages, as a result of the use of medication if 

that person in good faith administers autoinjectable epinephrine to a student or other individual with a 

severe allergy who is unable to self-administer the medication, regardless of whether the student or 

individual has a prescription for epinephrine. 

 

The district and the members of the Board are not liable in a criminal action or for civil damages as a 

result of the use of medication if any person in good faith, on school premises, including at a school, on 

school property under the jurisdiction of the district or at any activity under the jurisdiction of the district,  

administers autoinjectable epinephrine to a student or other individual, with a severe allergy who is unable 

to self-administer the medication, regardless of whether the student or individual has a prescription for 

epinephrine. 

 

The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations as needed to meet the requirements of law, 

and the implementation of this policy. 

 

END OF POLICY 

  

 
Legal Reference(s): 

 

ORS 109.610 

ORS 109.640 

ORS 109.675 

ORS 332.107 

ORS 339.866 to -339.871 

ORS 433.800 to -433.830 

ORS 475.005 to -475.285 

 

OAR 166-400-0010(17) 

OAR 166-400-0060(29) 

OAR 333-055-0000 to -0115 

OAR 581-021-0037 

OAR 581-022-2220 

OAR 851-047-0030 

OAR 851-047-0040 

 

Senate Bill  665 (2019)

 

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2018); Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 34 

C.F.R. Part 99 (2019). 

OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY AND OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, Medication Administration: A Manual for School 

Personnel. 

 

 
 

 
Page 124

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-109
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-109
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-109
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-433
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-475
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-166-400
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-166-400
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-333-055
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-851-047
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-851-047


 

R11/22/19 | PH              Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

1-9 

Lebanon Community Schools 
 Code: JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

 Adopted:  8/4/08, 1/20/11, 5/19/11, 

                                                                                                                                          11/13/14, 3/12/15, 8/20/15, 

5/26/16, 12/14/17, 4/23/20 

 

 

Medications**/* 

 

Students may, subject to the provisions of this administrative regulation, have prescription or 

nonprescription medication administered by designated personnel, or may be permitted to administer 

prescription or nonprescription medication to themself.   

 

1. Definitions 

 

a. “Medication” means any drug, chemical compound, suspension or preparation in suitable form 

for use as a curative or remedial substance taken internally or externally but not injected 

except for premeasured doses of epinephrine, medication to treat adrenal insufficiency and 

glucagon to treat severe hypoglycemia.  Medication includes any prescription for 

bronchodilators or autoinjectable epinephrine prescribed by a student’s Oregon licensed health 

care professional for asthma or severe allergies. 

b.  “Prescription medication” means any medication that under federal law requires a prescription 

by a prescriber. 

c. “Nonprescription medication” means medication that under federal law does not require a 

prescription from a prescriber. 

d. “Adrenal crisis” means adrenal crisis as defined in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 433.800. 

e. “Adrenal insufficiency” means adrenal insufficiency as defined in ORS 433.800. 

f. “Notice of a diagnosis of adrenal insufficiency” means written notice to the district from a 

student or the parent or guardian of a student who has been diagnosed as adrenal insufficient 

with a copy of an order from the student’s primary care provider that includes the student’s 

diagnosis, description of symptoms indicating the student is in crisis, prescription for 

medication to treat adrenal insufficiency crisis and instructions for follow-up care after 

medication to treat adrenal insufficiency crisis has been administered. 

g. “Prescriber1” means a doctor of medicine or osteopathy, a physician assistant licensed to 

practice by the Board of Medical Examiners for the state of Oregon, an Oregon-licensed, 

advance practice registered nurse with prescriptive authority, a dentist licensed by the Board of 

Dentistry for the state of Oregon, an optometrist licensed by the Board of Optometry for the 

state of Oregon, a naturopathic physician licensed by the Board of Naturopathy for the state of 

Oregon or a pharmacist licensed by the Board of Pharmacy for the state of Oregon.  

h. “Qualified trainer” means a person who is familiar with the delivery of health services in a 

school setting and who is a registered nurse licensed by the Oregon State Board of Nursing, a 

doctor of medicine or osteopathy or a physician assistant licensed by the Board of Medical 

Examiners for the state of Oregon, or a pharmacist licensed by the Board of Pharmacy for the 

state of Oregon. 

                                                 
1A registered nurse who is employed by a public or private school, ESD or local public health authority to provide nursing 

services at a public or private school may accept an order from a physician licensed to practice medicine or osteopathy in 

another state or territory of the U.S. if the order is related to the care or treatment of a student who has been enrolled at the 

school for not more than 90 days  

 
Page 125



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

2-9

i. “Severe allergy” means a life-threatening hypersensitivity to a specific substance such as food,

pollen, dust or insect sting.

j. “Asthma” means a chronic inflammatory disorder of the airways that requires ongoing medical

intervention.

k. “Designated personnel” means the school personnel designated to administer medication

pursuant to district policy and procedure.

2. Designated Staff/Training

a. The principal will designate personnel authorized to administer prescription or nonprescription

medication to a student while the student is in school, at a school-sponsored activity, under the

supervision of school personnel, in a before-school or after-school care programs on school-

owned property and in transit to or from school or a school-sponsored activity, as required by

Oregon law.  The principal will supervise and ensure building and activity practices and

procedures are consistent with the requirements of law, rules and this administrative

regulation.

b. The principal will ensure the training required by Oregon law is provided to designated

personnel.  Training must be conducted by a qualified trainer. Training will be provided

annually to designated personnel authorized to administer medication to students.  The first

year and every third year of training requires in-person instruction; during the intervening

years, designated personnel may complete an online training that has been approved by the

Oregon Department of Education (ODE) so long as a trainer is available within a reasonable

amount of time following the training to answer questions and provide clarification.

c. Training will provide an overview of applicable provisions of Oregon law, administrative

rules, district policy and administrative regulations and include, but not be limited to, the

following: safe storage, handling, monitoring medication supplies, disposing of medications,

record keeping and reporting of medication administration and errors in administration,

emergency medical response for life-threatening side effects, allergic reactions or adrenal

insufficiency, and student confidentiality.  Materials as recommended and/or approved by the

ODE will be used.

d. A copy of the district’s policy and administrative regulation will be provided to all staff

authorized to administer medication to students and others, as appropriate.

e. A statement that the designated personnel has received the required training will be signed by

the staff member and filed in the district office.

3. Administering Premeasured Doses of Epinephrine to a Student or Other Individual

A premeasured dose of epinephrine may be administered by trained, designated personnel to any 

student or other individual on school premises who the person believes in good faith is experiencing 

a severe allergic reaction, regardless of whether the student or individual has a prescription for  

epinephrine. 

4. Administering Naloxone or Other Similar Medication to a Student or Other Individual Naloxone or

any other similar medication that is in any form available for safe administration and that is designed

to rapidly reverse an overdose of an opioid drug may be administered by trained, designated

personnel to any student or other individual on school premises who the person believes in good

faith is experiencing an opioid overdose.

Page 126



 

R11/22/19 | PH              Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

3-9 

5. Administering of Medication to a Student Experiencing Symptoms of Adrenal Crisis 

 

A student experiencing symptoms of adrenal crisis while the student is in school, at a school-

sponsored activity, while under the supervision of school personnel, in a before-school or after-

school care program on school-owned property and in transit to or from a school or a school-

sponsored activity, may be treated by designated personnel and shall be subject to the following: 

 

a. Upon notice of a diagnosis of adrenal insufficiency, as defined in Oregon Administrative Rule 

(OAR) 581-021-0037, the building principal will designate one or more school personnel to be 

responsible for administering the medication to treat adrenal insufficiency; 

b. The designated personnel will successfully complete training to administer medication to treat 

a student who has adrenal insufficiency and is experiencing symptoms of adrenal crisis in 

accordance with the rules adopted by the Oregon Health authority; 

c. The student or the student’s parent or guardian must provide adequate supply of the student’s 

prescribed medication to the district; 

d. The district will require the development of an individualized health care plan for the student 

that includes protocols for preventing exposures to allergens, and establishes if or when a 

student may self-carry prescription medication when the student has not been approved to self-

administer medication; 

e. In the event that a student experiences symptoms of adrenal crisis and the designated personnel 

determines the medication to treat adrenal insufficiency should be administered, any available 

staff member will immediately call 911 and the student’s parent or guardian. 

 

6. Administering Medications to a Student 

 

a. A request to permit designated personnel to administer medication to a student may be 

approved by the district and is subject to the following: 

 

(1) A written request for t designated personnel to administer prescription medication to a 

student, if because of the prescribed frequency or schedule, the medication must be 

given while the student is in school, at a school-sponsored activity, while under the 

supervision of school personnel and in transit to or from school or a school-sponsored 

activity, must be submitted to the school office and shall include: 

 

(a) The written permission of the student’s parent or guardian or the student if the 

student is allowed to seek medical care without parental consent pursuant to ORS 

109.610, 109.640 or 109.675; and 

(b) The written instruction from the prescriber for the administration of the medication 

to the student that includes: 

 

(i) Name of the student; 

(ii) Name of the medication; 

(iii) Method of administration; 

(iv) Dosage; 

(v) Frequency of administration;  

(vi) Other special instructions from the prescriber, if any; and 

(vii)   Signature of the prescriber. 

 

 
Page 127



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

4-9

The prescription label prepared by a pharmacist at the direction of the prescriber, 

will be considered to meet this requirement if it contains the information listed in 

(i)-(vi) above. 

(2) A written request for designated personnel to administer nonprescription medication to a

student must be submitted to the school office and is subject to the following:

(a) The nonprescription medication is necessary for the student to remain in school;

(b) The nonprescription medication is provided in the original manufacturer’s

container by the parent or guardian of the student;

(c) The written instruction from the student’s parent or guardian for the administration

of the nonprescription medication includes:

(i) Name of the student;

(ii) Name of the medication;

(iii) Method of administration;

(iv) Dosage;

(v) Frequency of administration;

(vi) Other special instructions, if any; and

(vii) Signature of the student’s parent or guardian.

If the written instruction is not consistent with the manufacturer’s guidelines for 

the nonprescription medication, the written instruction must also include a written 

order allowing the inconsistent administration signed by a prescriber. 

(d) If the nonprescription medication is not approved by the Food and Drug

Administration (FDA), a written order from the student’s prescriber is required

and will include:

(i) Name of the student;

(ii) Name of the medication;

(iii) Dosage;

(iv) Method of administration;

(v) Frequency of administration;

(vi) A statement that the medication must be administered while the student is in

school;

(vii) Other special instructions, if any; and

(viii) Signature of the prescriber.

b. An individualized health care and allergy plan will be developed for a student with a known

life-threatening allergy and will include protocols for preventing exposures to allergens and

procedures for responding to life-threatening allergic reactions while the student is in school,

at a school-sponsored activity, while under the supervision of school personnel, in a before-

school or after-school care program on school-owned property and in transit to or from school

or a school-sponsored activity, and will include a determination on if or when the student may

self-carry prescription medication if the student has not been approved to self-administer

medication;

Page 128



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

5-9

c. It is the student’s parent or guardian’s, or the student’s if the student is allowed to seek

medical care without parental consent, responsibility to ensure that an adequate amount of

medication is on hand at the school for the duration of the student’s need to take medication;

d. It is the student’s parent or guardian’s, or the student’s if the student is allowed to seek

medical care without parental consent, responsibility to ensure that the school is informed in

writing of any changes in medication instructions;

e. In the event a student refuses medication, the parent or guardian will be notified immediately,

except where a student is allowed to seek medical care without parental consent.  No attempt

will be made to administer medication to a student who refuses a medication;

f. Any error in administration of a medication will be reported to the parent or guardian

immediately, except where a student is allowed to seek medical care without parental consent

and documentation will be made on the district’s Accident/Incident Report form.  Errors

include, but are not limited to, administering medication to the wrong student, administering

the wrong medication, dose, frequency of administration or method of administration;

g. Medication shall not be administered until the necessary permission form and written

instructions have been submitted as required by the district.

7. Administration of Medication by a Student to Themself

a. A student, including a student in grade K through 12 with asthma or severe allergies, may be

permitted to administer medication to themself without assistance from designated personnel

and is subject to the following:

(1) A student must demonstrate the ability, developmentally and behaviorally, to self-administer

prescription medication and must have:

(a) A permission form from a parent or guardian, except when the student is allowed to seek

medical care without parental consent pursuant to ORS 109.610, 109.640 or 109.675,

and other documentation requested by the district must be submitted for self-medication

of all prescription medications;

(b) If the student has asthma, diabetes and/or a severe allergy, a medication that is

prescribed by prescriber and a written treatment plan developed by a prescriber or other

Oregon licensed health care professional for managing of the student’s asthma, diabetes

and/or severe allergy, and directs use by the student while the student is in school, at a

school-sponsored activity, while under the supervision of school personnel, in a before-

school or after-school care programs on school-owned property and in transit to or from

school or a school-sponsored activity.  The prescriber will include acknowledgment that

the student has been instructed in the correct and responsible use of the prescribed

medication;

(c) The permission to self-administer the medication from a building administrator and a

prescriber or registered nurse practicing in a school setting.

(2) A student must demonstrate the ability, developmentally and behaviorally, to self-administer

nonprescription medication and must have:

(a) The written permission of the student’s parent or guardian, except when the student is

allowed to seek medical care without parental consent pursuant to ORS 109.610,

109.640 or 109.675;

Page 129



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

6-9

(b) The student’s name affixed to the manufacturer’s original container; and

(c) The permission to self-administer medication from a building administrator.

(3) A student must demonstrate the ability, developmentally and behaviorally, to self-administer

nonprescription medication that is not approved by the FDA and must have:

(a) The written permission of the student’s parent or guardian, except when the student is

allowed to seek medical care without parental consent pursuant to ORS 109.610,

109.640 or 109.675; and

(b) A written order from the student’s prescriber that includes:

(i) Name of the student;

(ii) Name of the medication;

(iii) Dosage;

(iv) Method of administration;

(v) Frequency of administration;

(vi) A statement that the medication must be administered while the student is in

school;

(vii) Other special instructions, if any; and

(viii) Signature of the prescriber.

b. The student may have in their possession only the amount of medication needed for that school

day, except for manufacturer’s packaging that contains multiple dosage, the student may carry

one package, such as, but not limited to, autoinjectable epinephrine or

bronchodilators/inhalers;

c. Sharing and/or borrowing of any medication with another student is strictly prohibited;

d. For a student who has been prescribed bronchodilators or epinephrine, the designated

personnel will request that the parent or guardian provide backup medication for emergency

use by that student.  Backup medication, if provided, will be kept at the student’s school in a

location to which the student has immediate access in the event the student has an asthma

and/or severe allergy emergency;

e. Upon written request from a parent or guardian, and with a prescriber’s written statement that

the lack of immediate access to a backup autoinjectable epinephrine may be life threatening to

a student, and the location the school stores backup medication is not located in the student’s

classroom, a process shall be established to allow the backup autoinjectable epinephrine to be

kept in a reasonably secure location in the student’s classroom;

f. A student shall not administer medication to themself until the necessary permission form and

written instructions have been submitted as required by the district;

g. Permission for a student to administer medication to themself may be revoked if the student

violates the Board policy and/or this regulation.

h. A student may be subject to discipline, up to and including expulsion, as appropriate;

i. A student permitted to administer medication to themself may be monitored by designated

personnel to monitor the student’s response to the medication.

8. Handling, Monitoring, and Safe Storage of Medication Supplies for Administering Medication to

Students

Page 130



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

7-9

a. Medication administered by designated personnel to a student or self-administered by a

student, must be delivered to the school in its original container, accompanied by the

permission form and written instructions, as required above.

b. Medication in capsule or tablet form and categorized as a sedative, stimulant, anticonvulsant,

narcotic analgesic or psychotropic medication will be counted by designated personnel in the

presence of another district employee upon receipt, documented in the student’s medication

log and routinely monitored during storage and administration.  Discrepancies will be reported

to the principal immediately and documented in the student’s medication log.  For such

medication not in capsule or tablet form, standard measuring and monitoring procedures will

apply.

c. Designated personnel will follow the written instructions of the prescriber and the student or

the student’s parent or guardian and training guidelines as may be recommended by the ODE

for administering all forms of prescription and/or nonprescription medications.

d. Medication will be secured as follows:

(1) Non-refrigerated medications will be stored in a locked cabinet, drawer or box used

solely for the storage of medication;

(2) Medications requiring refrigeration will be stored in a separate refrigerator used solely

for the storage of medication;

(3) Access to medication storage keys will be limited to the principal and designated

personnel.

e. Designated personnel will be responsible for monitoring all medication supplies and for

ensuring medication is secure at all times, not left unattended after administering and that the

medication container is properly sealed and returned to storage.

f. In the event medication is running low or an inadequate dosage is on hand to administer the

medication, the designated personnel will notify the student’s parent or guardian or the student

(in situations involving ORS 109.610, 109.640 and 109.675) immediately.

9. Emergency Response

a. Designated personnel will notify 911 or other appropriate emergency medical response

systems and administer first aid, as necessary, in the event of life-threatening side effects that

result from district-administered medication or from student self-medication or allergic

reactions.  The parent or guardian, school nurse, and principal will be notified immediately.

b. Minor adverse reactions that result from district-administered medication or from student self-

medication will be reported to the parent or guardian immediately, except when the student is

allowed to seek medical care without parental consent pursuant to ORS 109.610, 109.640 or

109.675.

c. Any available district staff will immediately call 911 and the student’s parent or guardian if the

designated personnel believes the student is experiencing symptoms of adrenal crisis and plans

to administer medication.

10. Disposal of Medications

a. Medication not picked up by the student’s parent or guardian, or the student when allowed

pursuant to ORS 109.610, 109.640 and 109.675, at the end of the school year or within five

Page 131



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

8-9

school days of the end of the medication period, whichever is earlier, will be disposed of by 

designated personnel in a nonrecoverable fashion as follows: 

(1) Medication will be removed from its original container and personal information will be

destroyed;

(2) Solid medications will be crushed, mixed or dissolved in water, liquid medications will

be mixed or dissolved in water;

(3) Mixed with an undesirable substance, such as coffee grounds, kitty litter, flour;  and

(4) Placed in impermeable non-descriptive containers, e.g. empty cans or sealable bags, and

placed in the trash.

Prescriptions will be flushed down the toilet only if the accompanying patient information 

specifically instructs it is safe to do so. 

Other medication will be disposed of in accordance with established training procedures 

including sharps and glass. 

b. All medication will be disposed of by designated personnel in the presence of another school

employee and documented as described in Section 10, below.

11. Transcribing, Recording, and Record Keeping

a. A medication log will be maintained for each student administered medication by the district.

The medication log will include, but not be limited to:

(1) The name of the student, name of medication, dosage, method of administration, date

and time of administration, frequency of administration and the name of the person

administering the medication;

(2) Student refusals of medication;

(3) Errors in administration of medication;

(4) Incidents of emergency and minor adverse reaction by a student to medication;

(5) Discrepancies in medication supply;

(6) Disposal of medication including date, quantity, manner in which the medication was

destroyed and the signature of the staff involved.

b. All records relating to administration of medications, including permissions and written

instructions, will be maintained in a separate medical file apart from the student’s education

records file unless otherwise related to the student’s educational placement and/or

individualized education program.  Records will be retained in accordance with applicable

provisions of OAR 166-400-0010(17) and OAR 166-400-0060(29).

c. Student health information will be kept confidential.  Access shall be limited to those

designated personnel authorized to administer medication to students, the student and their

parent or guardian.  Information may be shared with other staff with a legitimate educational

interest in the student or others as may be authorized by the parent or guardian in writing or

others as allowed under state and federal law.

Page 132



R11/22/19 | PH   Medications**/* - JHCD/JHCDA-AR 

9-9

Page 133



                                                                              
 

                                                                                 

Oregon Health Authority| Oregon Department of Education 

Fentanyl & Opioid Response Toolkit for Schools  

May 2022 

 

Dear Education Leaders and Partners, 

The Oregon Health Authority (OHA) and the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) co-developed this Fentanyl & 
Opioid Response Toolkit for Schools to support educators, administrators, school nurses, students and families in 
response to the public health crisis related to rising youth and adult opioid overdoses and deaths in Oregon.   

Schools are the heart of Oregon communities. This toolkit provides information about how schools may create an 
emergency protocol to administer Naloxone, also known as Narcan. The toolkit includes information on how to 
access, administer and store this life-saving opioid overdose prevention medication. In addition, this toolkit has 
resources to support staff training, prevention education, and other resources essential to developing and 
implementing school emergency response procedures.   

Rising opioid overdose deaths are a public health crisis. According to the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC), from May 2020 - April 2021, deaths due to accidental overdose surpassed 100,000 for the first 
time on record. Sixty-four percent of those deaths were attributed to illicitly manufactured fentanyl, which often 
comes in the form of pills that closely resemble prescription oxycodone or benzodiazepines such as Xanax. In 
Oregon, fentanyl-related overdose deaths increased by 74% from 2019 – 2020, for a total of 298 fentanyl-related 
deaths in 2020. Unfortunately, this trend is expected to continue, as Oregon has continued to see an increase in 
accidental overdose deaths due to fentanyl. 

Naloxone is an opioid antagonist that will temporarily reverse deadly respiratory depression experienced during an 
opioid overdose. It is available as intramuscular or subcutaneous injection and nasal spray. When administered 
quickly and effectively, naloxone can immediately restore breathing to a victim experiencing an opioid overdose. It 
is important to note that if naloxone is mistakenly given to someone not actually experiencing an opioid overdose, 
it will not harm them. There is no potential for addiction or other misuse of naloxone. With naloxone as part of an 
emergency protocol, school staff can quickly administer and prevent opioid overdose deaths.  

OHA and ODE strongly encourage schools to adopt policies and practices for safe and effective management and 
prevention of opioid-related overdoses in schools. When drug-related emergencies occur in or around schools, 
proper response is critical to save lives.  

Naloxone administration is one part of a coordinated community prevention strategy to address the public health 
crisis of opioid-related overdoses. Schools are encouraged to partner with community Alcohol and Drug Prevention 
Education Program Coordinators and Regional Overdose Prevention Coordinators which can be found under 
‘Partners’ here. School and community partnerships to implement research-based, culturally responsive, primary 
prevention strategies are key to protecting and supporting youth and family wellness. 

If you have any questions about this toolkit or would like additional ideas and thoughts in using some of the 
recommendations and resources provided in this document, please contact Bernadino De La Torre, OHA Youth SUD 
Program & Policy Coordinator at bernardino.delatorre@dhsoha.state.or.us.  

 
Page 134



      7      Fentanyl & Opioid Response Toolkit for Schools 

Key Messages for Prevention Education and Awareness 

Youth need to know about the dangers of fentanyl. Schools, youth-serving organizations, and 

families should share the following messages with youth: 

1. Counterfeit pills laced with fentanyl are flooding the Pacific Northwest. In just one year (2019-2020),

Oregon saw a 74% increase in fentanyl-related deaths.

2. Do not take any pill that you do not directly get from your doctor or a pharmacist. Pills received from

friends or purchased online or from social media are not safe.

3. Fentanyl is tasteless, odorless, and too small to see with the naked eye. It’s extremely potent. An

amount the size of two grains of sand is enough to cause a deadly overdose.

4. Fentanyl-laced pills appear identical to those prescribed by doctors. In Oregon, fentanyl is most

commonly seen in blue, greenish, or pale colored counterfeit pills. There may be other colors. These

pills may be marked as “M30.” Unless a pharmacist directly hands you a prescription pill, assume it is

counterfeit and contains fentanyl.

5. There is no such thing as a “safe” source: pills are often laced with fentanyl long before they reach a

direct supplier. Assume any pills obtained from social media, the internet, or a friend are counterfeit

and contain fentanyl.

6. The blending of fentanyl in counterfeit pills is inconsistent and completely random, making every single

dose a risk. One dose may not contain fentanyl, while another does—even though both come from the

same supply.

7. Naloxone is the only medication that can reverse an opioid overdose.

8. If someone is going to use, the best way to prevent a fatal overdose is to avoid using alone and to

always have naloxone on hand. If using alone and you overdose, you can’t call for help or administer

naloxone to yourself.

9. The clearest sign of an overdose is if someone is unresponsive (won’t wake up). Other signs include:

- Slow, shallow or no breathing -Cold or clammy skin

- Pinpoint pupils -Difficult to wake, or can’t wake

- Heavy gurgling or snoring sounds -Blue or gray skin, lips, or nails

10. An overdose is always a medical emergency. Call 911 immediately. Remember that the Good

Samaritan Law protects witnesses and victims from being prosecuted for drug possession. If you seek

medical assistance in a drug-related overdose, you and the victim cannot be prosecuted for drug

possession.

Page 135



Agenda Item 10 
Finance Reports 

Page 136



BOARD 
MEMORANDUM 

To: The Honorable Chair and Members 
Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors 

From: William H. Lewis III, Business Director 

Date: May 12, 2022 Meeting Date:  May 19, 2022 

Re: Financial Report and Fiscal Updates 

Financial Report 

The 2021-2022 Financial Board Report included in this packet reflects all revenues and 
expenditures for 2015-2021 and the budgeted YTD expenditures, plus encumbered amounts for 
2021-2022 as of 5/12/22.  

2020-21 Audit Report- Lebanon’s 2020-21 audit is complete. A letter addressed to the school 
board is attached in the packet as well as the full audit document. Sean Chamberlin from Pauly, 
Rogers and Co., P.C. will be make a few comments and answer any questions regarding the 2020-
21 audit process. The Oregon Department of Education is now asking for approval of the audit 
document for various grants. This is not an official board resolution.  

Interfund Loan Resolution- During the 2021-22 school year the district desires to purchase 
curriculum early in preparation for a 2022-23 curriculum implementation. This will allow staff to 
have access to the required curriculum resources prior to summer vacation. To accomplish this 
early purchase of curriculum the district would like to complete an interfund loan of up to 
$150,000.00 from fund 272 capital projects fund to fund 240 the textbook adoption fund. The loan 
will be paid back in 2022-23. The district will have the appropriate documentation and loan 
agreements in place stating the terms of the loan. The interfund loan process is a common practice 
in school districts across the state of Oregon.  

Page 137



| 18/19 19/20 | 20-21 21-22 05-12-22 05-12-22
| Actual Actual | Budget Budget YTD & Enc Balance

General Fund - Revenue | |
|

SSF Formula | 39,748,844  42,038,081  | 43,560,057  44,440,549  40,814,106     3,626,443     
SSF Adjustment | - | - - - 
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - | - - - 
Federal Ed Jobs - | - - - 
School Year SubAccount - | - - - 
Loan Receipts - | - - - 
Interest | 385,564       320,317       | 250,000       150,000       77,539 72,461 
Third Party Billing | 72,372         - | - - - - 
TMR | 180,556       212,376       | 210,000       210,000       85,313 124,687        
JROTC | 35,236         77,982         | 65,000         65,000         55,248 9,752 
Other | 374,395       325,816       | 387,500       368,266       238,430 129,836        
Interfund Transfer | 8,029 850,000       | - - - 
BFB | 5,263,314    2,126,603    | 3,784,307    5,065,000    6,205,654       (1,140,654)    

Total | 46,068,310 45,951,175 | 48,256,864 50,298,816 47,476,290 2,822,526 
======== | ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== ========

|
General Fund - Expenses |

|
Salaries | 21,069,833  21,896,193  | 21,680,883  22,526,487  22,179,235     347,252        
Benefits | 13,157,764  14,481,355  | 15,086,873  14,597,973  13,805,285     792,688        
P. Services | 5,396,276    5,349,577    | 5,299,827    5,686,551    5,404,005       282,546        
Supplies | 1,269,608    1,569,846    | 1,530,133    1,606,583    1,307,790       298,793        
Capital Outlay | 76,554         54,500         | 90,000         100,000       311,824 (211,824)       
Other Objects | 350,672       441,468       | 469,147       501,776       441,740 60,036 
Transfers | 2,621,000    1,185,000    | 2,100,000    2,279,446    2,070,997       208,449        
Contingency | - 1,750,000 | 2,000,000    3,000,000    - 3,000,000 

Total | 43,941,707 46,727,940 | 48,256,864 50,298,816 45,520,876 4,777,939 
======== | ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== ========

Page 138



 2021-22 General Fund Revenue Report

18/19 19/20 20-21 | 21-22 5-12-22 5-12-22
 Actual Actual Budget | Budget YTD Balance

||
SSF Formula |

1111, Taxes 10,179,205  10,509,179     10,938,094     | 11,873,719     11,216,753  656,966         
4801,4899 Federal Forest Fees 179,478       157,804          130,000          | 125,000          -               125,000         
3103 Common School 437,082       196,120          400,000          | 444,819          437,986       6,833             
2101 County School 209,250          200,000          | 195,000          24,871         170,129         
3104 State Timber 167,048       23,587            100,000          | 100,000          115,423       (15,423)         
3101/3199 School Support Fund 29,101,930  30,942,140     31,791,963     | 31,702,011     29,019,073  2,682,938      

Adjustments to SSF Payments | -                
    Adj for Prior Year payments (755,646)      | -                
    Adj for HC Disability Grant 439,748       -                  -                  | -                  -               -                

Total SSF Formula 39,748,844  42,038,081     43,560,057     | 44,440,549     40,814,106  3,626,443      
|

1510 Interest on Investments 385,564       320,317          250,000          | 150,000          77,539         72,461           
| -                

4200 Third Party billing 72,372         -                  -                  | -                  -               -                
| -                

2210 TMR 180,556       212,376          210,000          | 210,000          85,313         124,687         
| -                

4300 JROTC reimbursement 35,236         77,982            65,000            | 65,000            55,248         9,752             
| -                

Other | -                
1741 Outdoor School -                  -                  | -                  -               -                
1910 Rental Fees 3,926           1,582              7,500              | 5,000              -               5,000             
1980 Fees Charged to Grants -               14,915            50,000            | 108,266          86,606         21,660           
1312, 
1960,
 1990, 
5300 Miscellaneous 370,469       304,781          250,000          | 255,000          138,969       116,031         
1760 Club Fundraising -                  -                  | -                  -               -                
1411, 1993 Transportation Fees 4,538              -                  | -                  -               -                
1994 E-Rate reimbursement -               -                  80,000            | -                  12,855         (12,855)         

| -                
5200 Interfund Transfer - Athletics 8,029           850,000          -                  | -                  -               -                

| -                
5400 Beginning Fund Balance 5,263,314    2,126,603       3,784,307       | 5,065,000       6,205,654    (1,140,654)    | -                

Total 46,068,310  45,951,175     48,256,864     | 50,298,816     47,476,290  2,822,526      
======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

 
Page 139



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 5-12-22 5-12-22 5-12-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

|
Certified salaries 12,295,790 12,665,056 12,540,564 | 12,871,079 8,584,449 4,247,214 39,416
Classified salaries 5,554,869 6,227,931 6,008,791 | 6,250,523 4,142,243 1,524,904 583,376
Administrative salaries 1,782,092 1,873,807 1,863,955 | 2,059,820 1,728,223 372,918 (41,321)
Managerial - classified 249,120 154,577 289,051 | 299,689 335,635 83,576 (119,522)
Retirement stipends 19,904 91,904 133,413 | 120,000 80,000 40,000 0
Confidential salaries 159,789 162,808 284,898 | 343,800 310,622 92,339 (59,161)
Certified subs 43,660 2,000 0 | 14,294 0 0 14,294
Classified subs 43,138 1,500 23,975 | 0 0 0 0
Temp certified 162,287 82,264 45,425 | 0 27,201 338 (27,539)
Temp classified 23,111 8,000 21,658 | 481 13,527 0 (13,046)
Student helpers salaries 4,413 21,000 16,654 | 5,748 13,544 0 (7,796)
Overtime 50,768 0 91,513 | 57,127 52,311 3,512 1,304
Compensation time 77,738 52,300 44,207 | 71,883 32,984 0 38,899
Extra duty 350,933 279,579 128,295 | 230,761 156,264 0 74,497
Classified extra hrs 200,393 208,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Vacation Payoff 14,017 29,817 24,292 | 28,240 42,921 0 (14,681)
Mentor teacher pay 0 0 0 | 0 985 0 (985)
Personal Leave Payout 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Department Head Extra Duty 788 6,000 30,000 | 0 0 0 0
Taxable Meal Reimbursement 2,073 0 809 | 2,000 561 0 1,439
Cell Phone Stipend 0 1,080 | 1,080 450 0 630
Travel Stipend 0 11,400 | 0 22,417 4,483 (26,900)
Club Advisor 34,950 29,650 120,904 | 169,964 141,254 124,360 (95,650)

Total Salaries 21,069,833 21,896,193 21,680,883 | 22,526,487 15,685,591 6,493,644 347,252

PERS 5,753,639 7,398,130 7,286,664 | 6,797,646 4,481,954 1,867,593 448,099
Social Security 1,544,838 1,655,388 1,642,024 | 1,627,475 1,152,593 468,116 6,766
Worker's Comp 210,272 293,025 275,747 | 189,328 92,155 30,158 67,015
Employee Ins - Admin 239,427 215,642 275,263 | 283,669 243,804 53,909 (14,044)
Employee Ins - Certified 2,829,522 2,449,421 2,756,998 | 2,840,563 1,914,407 956,559 (30,403)
Employee Ins - Classified 2,408,513 2,327,520 2,596,579 | 2,598,694 1,711,411 684,731 202,552
Employee Ins - Other 36,487 33,429 65,298 | 92,498 60,417 15,932 16,149
Employee Ins - Retired 120,255 83,600 52,700 | 120,000 25,946 0 94,054
TSA 24,336 25,200 45,600 | 45,600 38,000 7,600 0
Staff Tuition Reimbursement 0 0 90,000 | 2,500 0 0 2,500
Employee Tuition (9,525) 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Total Benefits 13,157,764 14,481,355 15,086,873 | 14,597,973 9,720,687 4,084,598 792,688

Page 140



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 5-12-22 5-12-22 5-12-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

Instructional Services 125,368 103,800 76,375 | 66,000 158,377 37,243 (129,620)
Instr Prog Improve Service 33,042 53,000 67,750 | 87,750 32,099 0 55,651
Student SVCS 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Data Processing SVCS 0 0 0 | 3,000 3,020 0 (20)

0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Professional and Improvement Costs for Non-Insturctional0 0 0 | 15,000 0 0 15,000
Other Instr-Prof-Tech SVCS 11,205 20,000 10,000 | 11,500 54,398 20,880 (63,778)
Repairs & Maintenance 206,884 190,300 227,612 | 258,500 223,648 25,509 9,343
Radio Service 12,455 11,100 11,100 | 15,000 979 1,433 12,588
Rentals 121,067 129,400 88,286 | 86,300 62,847 5,448 18,005
Electricity 453,206 502,620 465,700 | 451,500 316,470 80,612 54,418
Fuel 181,534 223,135 217,800 | 208,100 185,059 10,316 12,725
Water & Sewer 138,029 153,520 142,500 | 146,700 114,225 0 32,475
Garbage 112,864 102,400 87,000 | 106,500 80,598 0 25,902
Other Property Services 3,500 20,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Reimb. Student Transportation 4,658 10,200 29,900 | 34,500 210,554 530 (176,584)
Reimb. Student Transportation (79,915) 0
Travel 163,937 158,263 150,513 | 153,011 74,689 13,421 64,901
Travel - Student - Out of Dist. 1,140 5,300 4,500 | 3,500 0 0 3,500
Meals/Transportation 153 200 350 | 350 0 0 350
Mileage/Transportation 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Staff Tuition 92,746 47,000 2,000 | 72,000 35,838 1,745 34,417

0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Telephone 44,987 73,165 65,100 | 52,300 54,364 6,049 (8,113)
Postage 24,224 26,074 28,900 | 32,117 25,753 7,188 (824)
Advertising 2,761 4,300 2,650 | 3,500 8,990 247 (5,737)
Printing & Binding 13,712 29,400 30,950 | 31,700 33,173 0 (1,473)
Other Communication Services 0 0 0 | 0 0 0
Charter School Payments 2,159,564 2,195,000 2,300,000 | 2,400,000 2,256,704 343,296 (200,000)
Tuitions Payments to Other Dist. 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Tuition Pay Private School 0 5,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Other Tuition 240,090 92,500 90,000 | 115,000 8,856 0 106,144
Audit Services 29,150 30,000 39,000 | 36,000 0 0 36,000
Legal Services 33,971 35,000 35,000 | 35,000 8,337 0 26,663
Negotiation Services 0 10,000 5,000 | 1,000 0 0 1,000
Data Processing SVCS 65,278 89,600 65,000 | 57,500 41,427 0 16,073
Election Services 4,632 5,000 5,000 | 18,000 0 0 18,000
Other Non_instr Pro/Tech 447,701 363,700 351,450 | 402,650 453,102 68,794 (119,246)
Physical Exams - Drivers 4,072 4,400 5,750 | 5,500 5,866 0 (366)
Drug Tests Drivers 1,670 3,000 2,250 | 3,000 495 1,505 1,000
Child Care Services 0 15,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Sub calling service 14,113 15,000 12,000 | 7,500 0 0 7,500
Classified subs 226,030 194,000 228,600 | 251,500 44,108 0 207,392
Criminal History checks 3,394 3,200 3,500 | 3,500 817 0 2,683
Fingerprinting 626 1,000 2,500 | 1,000 446 0 554

Classified subs 499,112 425,000 445,791 | 510,573 284,550 0 226,023
Total P. Services 5,396,276 5,349,577 5,299,827 | 5,686,551 4,779,789 624,216 282,546

 
Page 141



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 5-12-22 5-12-22 5-12-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

Gas Oil & Lubricants 185,324 190,500 189,100 | 192,000 149,628 55,374 (13,002)
Supplies & Materials 457,850 648,024 651,837 | 698,023 565,254 29,600 103,169
Vehicle repair parts 27,649 52,800 50,500 | 50,500 38,630 13,614 (1,744)
Transportation operations 30,665 15,000 25,000 | 25,000 17,324 2,957 4,719
Textbooks 68,642 28,033 9,933 | 5,433 11,256 0 (5,823)
Library Books 5,914 15,694 8,200 | 11,700 8,791 919 1,990
Periodicals 6,511 6,000 10,800 | 12,100 10,729 5,398 (4,027)
Equipment under 5K 160,140 178,842 146,100 | 125,550 49,488 0 76,062
Computer software 184,472 264,360 257,398 | 323,918 277,208 1,138 45,572
Computer hardware 142,441 170,593 181,265 | 162,359 65,102 5,380 91,877

Total Supplies & Materials 1,269,608 1,569,846 1,530,133 | 1,606,583 1,193,410 114,380 298,793

Buildings Acquisition 0 0 25,000 16,277.68 14,003.75 (5,281)
Improvements Other Than Buildings 0 28,615.00 0.00 (28,615)
Equipment 33,623 54,500 25,000 | 45,000 0.00 0.00 45,000
New Equipment over 5K 35,353 0 45,000 | 10,000 46,626.76 0.00 (36,627)
Replace of Equip over 5K 0 20,000 | 20,000 186,007.24 20,294.00 (186,301)
Depreciable Technology 7,579 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bus Replacement 0 0 0 | 0 0.00 0 0

Total Capital Outlay 76,554 54,500 90,000 | 100,000 277,527 34,298 (211,824)
Regular Interest 0 500 0 | 0 0 0 0
Dues & Fees 105,393 175,180 159,726 | 148,076 81,020 266 66,790
Insurance & Judgments 245,279 265,588 306,221 | 350,000 358,935 534 (9,469)
Settlements 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Taxes & Licenses 0 200 700 | 700 985 0 (285)

|
Total Other Objects 350,672 441,468 469,147 | 501,776 440,940 800 60,036

Page 142



 2021-22 General Fund Expenditure Report

18/19 19/20 20/21 | 21/22 5-12-22 5-12-22 5-12-22
Description Actual Actual Budget Budget | Budget YTD Encumb Balance

Transfer -  Vocational House Fund 40,000 0 70,000 | 250,000 250,000 0 0
Transfer - Technology 100,000 0 80,000 | 100,000 100,000 0 0
Transfer - Classroom Furniture 50,000 0 10,000 | 35,000 35,000 0 0
Transfer - Textbook Adoption 400,000 400,000 200,000 | 350,000 350,000 0 0
Transfer - Capital Improvement 400,000 200,000 | 300,000 300,000 0 0
Transfer - Track and Turf Fund 85,000 10,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Transfer - Athletic Fund 446,000 450,000 475,000 | 475,000 475,000 0 0
Transfer - Bus Replacement 300,000 150,000 225,000 | 225,000 225,000 0 0
Transfer - Unemploy Ins 25,000 25,000 250,000 | 0 0 0 0
Transfer - OHC Fund 0 | 0 0 0 0
PERS Reserve 525,000 0 450,000 | 300,000 300,000 0 0
Transfer - Food Service 100,000 100,000 120,000 | 224,446 15,997 0 208,449
Transfer - Music/Band Replacement 0 0 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 0
Transfer - Debt Service 150,000 50,000 0 | 0 0 0 0
Transfer  - Academic Achievement 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 0

Total Transfers 2,621,000 1,185,000 2,100,000 | 2,279,446 2,070,997 0 208,449
|

Reserve/Contingency 0 1,750,000 2,000,000 | 3,000,000 0 0 3,000,000
|

Grand Total 43,941,707 46,727,940 48,256,864 | 50,298,816 34,168,941 11,351,936 4,777,939
========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= =========

Page 143



Agenda Item 11 
Superintendent Communication 

Page 144



Dear LCSD School Board,

There are a few issues that I want to bring to your attention for your awareness:

Crappy

● We are currently exploring some issues at Hamilton Creek that will lead to a change in leadership.
Jordon Ford has asked for a change of assignment, and I believe it is in the school's best interest to
make this move immediately. Emily Canfield will be our interim principal with a high level of support
from the central office administrative team.

● ODE has adjusted our funding for the current school year, reducing it by $1.5 million. This is due to
some changes in our poverty data and an adjustment to our ADMW. We budgeted on having another
one hundred students that we do not have.

● We will not be offering Santiam Academy after this academic year. Enrollment numbers do not support
the continuation of the school. We surveyed current families regarding their preferences for the
coming year, and it is evident that we need to be focusing on in-person instruction. This program
allowed us to meet the needs of families with COVID-19 and mask concerns this year. We will inform
staff and parents early next week about our decision and their options in terms of placement back in
classrooms.

● While the following has not been and is not currently an issue, there is opportunity for that to occur.
As you know, regardless of a student's biological sex, they have the right to use the restroom that aligns
with their preferred gender identity. We are seeing more students identify as being transgender at
earlier ages, and our responsibility is to provide all students with a safe and supportive school
environment.

Happy

● Last night, LHS hosted an outstanding Warrior Showcase with impressive attendance by incoming 8th
graders and their families. This event required enormous planning by the administrative team and
office manager as well as participation by countless staff members and their students. They
orchestrated a wonderful welcome for visitors and had dozens of interactive tables featuring clubs,
activities, athletics, and course options.

● After a two-year hiatus, our district's 3rd graders are again enjoying their two-week field trips to the
Lebanon Community Pool. They receive valuable swim instruction at their skill levels, along with some
playtime, and for many students, this is their first time in the water. It's an excellent tradition and use
of our resources to serve students.

● Speaking of traditions, the Gift of Literacy will happen again this year on June 6 at Crowfoot Baptist
Church (9:00 - 12:00 if you want to stop by). While we won't have firefighter involvement this time due
to a scheduling conflict, all other elements will be in place, meaning that 1st graders from across the
district will be bussed over, read to, given a backpack with a hardcover book they can keep, and fed a
free lunch. It's a fun day to be a young reader.

● The primary election is next month, and we feel optimistic about voter support for our proposed
facilities bond. We will host two bond-specific Q & A sessions–one virtual and one in person (dates
coming soon)–in April to add clarity and information to the local conversation.

I appreciate your ongoing support and am happy to answer any questions.

Bo

Page 145

https://www.oregonlive.com/pacific-northwest-news/2018/07/judge_transgender_students_hav.html
http://lebanon.k12.or.us/facilities-bond/

	May 19, 2022 Meeting Agenda.docx - Jess updates
	agenda item 3.docx audit
	LEBANON SCHOOL DISTRICT Communication School Board Final
	Lebanon Community School District - Financial Report - 2021
	agenda item 3.docx resolution
	Interfund Loan Resolution 21-22 - 7
	agenda item 3.docx minutes9
	April 14, 2022 DRAFT meeting minutes
	agenda item 3.docx policy update
	JHCD_JHCDA (1).docx new draft 5.13
	JHCD_JHCDA-AR.docx new draft 5.13
	Fentanyl_Opioid_Response_Toolkit_for_Schools_5.12.22
	agenda item 3.docx finance
	5-12-22 Financial Report & Memo.pdf before 1 - Will
	financial 1 - Will
	financial rev 2 - Will
	financial exp 3 - Will
	agenda item 3.docx sup commun
	Yates letter to SB - Santiam Academy closing



